
STAFF MEETING MINUTES  
LANCASTER COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

COUNTY-CITY BUILDING
ROOM 113 - BILL LUXFORD STUDIO

TUESDAY, DECEMBER 20, 2016
10:00 A.M. OR IMMEDIATELY FOLLOWING THE CONCLUSION OF 

THE REGULAR COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING

Commissioners Present: Roma Amundson, Chair
Todd Wiltgen, Vice Chair
Larry Hudkins
Deb Schorr
Bill Avery

Others Present: Kerry Eagan, Chief Administrative Officer
Dennis Meyer, Budget & Fiscal Officer
Jennifer Brinkman, County Commissioner-Elect           

(District 2)
Dan Nolte, County Clerk
Cori Beattie, Deputy County Clerk
Ann Taylor, County Clerk’s Office

Advance public notice of the Board of Commissioners Staff Meeting was posted on the
County-City Building bulletin board and the Lancaster County, Nebraska, web site and
provided to the media on December 19, 2016.

The Chair noted the location of the Open Meetings Act and opened the meeting at
10:14 a.m.

AGENDA ITEM

 1 APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF THE DECEMBER 8, 2016 STAFF
MEETING

MOTION: Hudkins moved and Wiltgen seconded approval of the December 8, 2016
Staff Meeting minutes.  Wiltgen, Schorr, Hudkins and Amundson voted
yes.  Avery was absent from voting.  Motion carried 4-0.

 

Page 1 BOC/STAFF/12/20/2016



 2 NEW CRIMINAL DIVISION ATTORNEY - Joe Kelly, County Attorney;
Doug Cyr, Chief Deputy County Attorney

Joe Kelly, County Attorney, outlined his request for a new adult criminal prosecutor in
the County Attorney’s Criminal Division (see his letter to the Board dated December 14,
2016 in the agenda packet).  He said the position is needed to help cover the existing
caseload, noting the number of felony cases in District Court increased dramatically this
calendar year. 

Avery arrived at the meeting at 10:16 a.m.

Kelly also relayed the following:

• The County Attorney’s Office has not added an adult criminal
prosecutor since 2006 and the caseload in District Court has doubled
since then.

• An additional District Court Judge and County Court Judge were added
in 2011 and 2012, respectively, which has made coverage more
difficult.  

• It is difficult to retain attorneys.  Seventeen have left for other
positions or were appointed judges in the past six years.

Wiltgen said the Open Data Policy Committee is looking at issues involving data and
asked Kelly if he has made progress in compiling caseload data.  Kelly said Dr. Mitchel
Herian, University of Nebraska Public Policy Center, has been assisting with that effort. 
He said they have made substantial progress in the last couple of months but estimated
it will be at least six months before weekly and monthly data will be available.  Wiltgen
stressed the importance of data in the decision making process at the local, state and
federal levels, particularly in the areas of law enforcement, prosecution and corrections.

In response to a question from Hudkins, Kelly said use of body camera evidence is
increasing and said he anticipates all of the law enforcement agencies will expand in
that area in the next year.  He said body camera evidence and digital crime scene
photographs significantly increase the time and amount of evidence the prosecutor
must review in preparation for trial.

Doug Cyr, Chief Deputy County Attorney, noted in 2010 and 2011, the County
Attorney’s budget, as a percent of the entire General Fund, was 8.03%.  It is now
6.81%.  He also pointed out that attorneys frequently work 60 or more hours per week.

Schorr asked whether the County Attorney’s Office could bring in an attorney on
contract.  Kelly said it would not be feasible.

Page 2 BOC/STAFF/12/20/2016



Schorr said the Board would typically consider requests for additional full-time
equivalents (FTE’s) at the Mid-Year Budget Retreat or as part of the budget process
and asked why this request is being brought forward at this time.  Kelly said because
there is an immediate need.  He explained the position would be covered in this fiscal
year’s budget but said the hiring would likely not take place until April or May, 2017.  

Schorr expressed concern that the Board may receive a similar request from the Public
Defender.

MOTION: Hudkins moved and Avery seconded to authorize the County Attorney to
proceed with hiring a new adult criminal division prosecutor.

Wiltgen asked Kelly whether he feels the increase in felony cases reflects a trend.  Kelly
said he does and said he has no reason to believe the number of cases will level off or
decrease next year.  Kelly said there were steady increases in the number of cases in
2012, 2013 and 2014.  There was a slight drop in 2015 and a significant increase in
2016.  He said he does not anticipate another significant increase in 2017 but is still
trying to fill a gap that should have been addressed a while ago. 

ROLL CALL:  Avery, Wiltgen, Schorr, Hudkins and Amundson voted yes.  Motion
carried 5-0.

 3 FISCAL YEAR (FY) 2017-2018 BUDGET PROCESS - Dennis Meyer,
Budget and Fiscal Officer

Dennis Meyer, Budget and Fiscal Officer, said he would like consensus from the Board
on the Fiscal Year (FY) 2017-2018 budget process.  He said if a decision isn’t made
soon, implementation of any changes will have to be “pushed off” to another year. 
Meyer noted zero-base budgeting has been discussed so he has tried to identify other
counties that are utilizing that method in order to obtain template forms.  He said he
has not been successful, adding it appears many are only utilizing “bits and pieces” of
zero-base budgeting.  Meyer said he contacted Dr. Carol Ebdon, a Professor in the
School of Public Administration at the University of Nebraska-Omaha (UNO) who was
listed as an advisor in an article titled Zero-Base Budgeting, Modern Experienced and
Current Perspectives, a study sponsored by the Government Finance Officers
Association and the City of Calgary, Alberta, Canada (Exhibit A).  Dr. Ebdon indicated
she would be willing to discuss the matter after the first of the year.  

Wiltgen said he does not believe the Board will reach consensus on the budget process
because not all of the Board members feel zero-base budgeting is worthwhile.  He said
the other option is to allow what has been done in the past, which is incremental
budgeting. Wiltgen expressed concern that the Board will have to raise property taxes if
it cannot control spending. 

Page 3 BOC/STAFF/12/20/2016



Meyer noted the Board has faced some tough budget years in the recent past and was
able to find cost savings by removing functions of county government, citing the sale of
Lancaster Manor (nursing home facility) and transitioning the functions of the
Community Mental Health Center (CMHC) to private providers as examples. 

In response to a question from Hudkins, Meyer said the County’s total budget increased 
5.02% last year and the General Fund budget increased 1.47%.  Hudkins pointed out
that the general inflation rate has been 1.8% to 2.2%.

Avery noted the County piloted zero-base budgeting last year with two departments
(Corrections and County Engineering) and was not successful.  Meyer said “getting
everyone on the same page” with zero-base budgeting will not be an easy task.  Avery
said it will likely take a multi-year project to get there.

Schorr agreed that the County needs to do things differently and suggested bringing in
a consultant with expertise in zero-base budgeting to provide assistance and training.

Amundson referenced the article cited earlier (see Exhibit A) and said it mentions
utilizing “bits and pieces” of zero-base budgeting along with other budgeting methods.
She said very few entities use pure zero-base budgeting and said since County
department budgets are not alike (some are primarily comprised of payroll costs), an
“across-the-board” application may not work.

Sheli Schindler, Youth Services Center (YSC) Director, said departments may have
different opinions in terms of prioritization of services. 

Schorr asked Meyer whether he has discussed budgeting practices in other localities
with Allen, Gibbs & Houlik (AGH), L. C., Certified Public Accountants (CPA’s) and
Advisors, the County’s auditors.  Meyer said he spoke to Ben Hart, Vice President, AGH,
and he indicated he doesn’t work with any groups utilizing zero-base budgeting.  Hart
said some groups use priority-based and target-based budgeting.  

Avery suggested Meyer contact Pima County Arizona, stating they were the model for
zero-base budgeting.  Meyer said Maricopa County, Arizona has also been mentioned.

Amundson felt performance measures are needed and suggested the County spread
zero-based budgeting over a three-year period, dividing the departments between the
three years.

Avery said another option would be to determine how much needs to be cut and spread
it across-the-board.  The department heads would decide where to make the cuts.

Page 4 BOC/STAFF/12/20/2016



Schindler asked where reimbursement for services would fit in.  Meyer said revenues
would be taken into account.

Schorr asked Bob Walla, Purchasing Agent, how long it would take to develop a request
for proposal (RFP) for consulting services for municipal budgeting.  Walla said it would
depend on the level of expertise desired.  If certain licensing or certifications are
required it would be considered a professional service and an RFP would not be
necessary.

Avery suggested five department heads be asked to bring forward a list of essential
expenditures and a list of other expenditures that might be deemed non-essential as a
“kickstart” to the budgeting process, adding the reality may be that the County doesn’t
have many non-essential expenditures.  Meyer agreed that exercise could be beneficial.
Amundson felt it should involve different types of departments.

There was general consensus to gather more information on budgeting methods.  
Meyer will have further discussions with Dr. Ebdon and Hart and Avery will contact
Pima County, Arizona.

Also present for the discussion were Joe Kelly, County Attorney; Pat Condon, Chief
Deputy County Attorney; Doug Cyr, Chief Deputy County Attorney; David Derbin,
Deputy County Attorney; Joe Nigro, Public Defender; Brad Johnson, Corrections
Director; Angie Koziol, Administrative Services Officer, Corrections; Kim Etherton,
Community Corrections Director; Jeff Curry, Chief Probation Officer, Adult Probation;
Melissa Hood, Administrative Aide, Youth Services Center (YSC); Dena Hupp, Account
Clerk, YSC; Jared Gavin, District Court Administrator; Becky Bruckner, County Court
Administrator; Theresa Emmert, Juvenile Court Administrator; Troy Hawk, Clerk of the
District Court; Simon Rezac, Deputy, Accounting Division, Clerk of the District Court’s
Office; Terry Wagner, Lancaster County Sheriff; Todd Duncan, Chief Deputy Sheriff;
Michelle Sewell, Financial Coordinator, Lancaster Sheriff’s Office (LSO); Sara Hoyle,
Human Services Director; Scott Etherton, Mental Health Crisis Center Director; Jareth
Kaup, Account Clerk III, Mental Health Crisis Center; Pam Dingman, County Engineer;
Angela Zocholl, Administrative Services Officer, County Engineering; Candace Meredith,
Chief Deputy Treasurer; Norm Agena, County Assessor/Register of Deeds; Rob Ogden,
Chief Field Deputy Assessor/Register of Deeds; Scott Gaines, Chief Administrative
Deputy Assessor/Register of Deeds; Dave Shively, Election Commissioner; Don Killeen,
County Property Manager; Jim Davidsaver, Emergency Management Director; Mark
Hosking, Emergency Management Deputy Director; Brent Meyer, Weed Control
Superintendent; Liz Thanel, Accountant, Budget and Fiscal Office; Tim Genuchi,
Accounting Operations Manager, County Clerk’s Office; Karen Wobig,
Extension Educator, Cooperative Extension; Jenny DeBuhr, Administrative Assistant,
Cooperative Extension; Brian Pillard, Records & Information Manager; Rick Hoppe,
Mayor’s Chief of Staff; and Steve Henderson, Chief Information Officer, Information
Services (IS). 

Page 5 BOC/STAFF/12/20/2016



 4 ACTION ITEMS

A. Accept Offer From Bryan Health for Purchase of Real Property No
Longer Serving a County Purpose, Generally Located at 2201 South
17th Street, Lancaster County, Nebraska

Eagan said the County has still not obtained the necessary easement release from Time
Warner Cable so the sale of the Community Mental Health Center (CMHC) property
at 2201 South 17th Street to Bryan Health cannot be finalized.

 5 ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER REPORT

A. Mid-Year Budget Review Date

There was consensus to change the date from January 26, 2017 to February 2, 2017. 
The location will remain the same (UNICO Group, 1128 Lincoln Mall, Suite 200). 

B. Thank You Letter to University of Nebraska-Lincoln (UNL) Engineering
Department Regarding North 148th Street Structure south of Holdrege
Street

NOTE: The UNL Civil Engineering Department assisted the County in conducting a
stress test on the County road structure located on North 148th Street just south of
Holdrege Street.

The Board reviewed a letter draft and requested the following revisions: 1) Add “Ali
Jami” following the phrase “your student” in the first sentence of the letter; 2) Add a
period at the end of the second paragraph; and 3) Send a separate thank you letter to
Mark Traynowicz, P.E., State Bridge Engineer.

C. Visitors Promotion Committee (VPC) Parks and Recreation Ex-Officio
Representative (Nicole Fleck-Tooze, Special Projects Administrator,
Lincoln Parks & Recreation Department)

Informational only.

D. Amendment of Visitors Promotion Committee (VPC) Bylaws

NOTE: See agenda packet for proposed revisions to the bylaws.

The Board scheduled action on amendment of the bylaws on the January 3, 2017
County Board of Commissioners Meeting agenda.

Page 6 BOC/STAFF/12/20/2016



E. Volunteer Opportunity at Youth Services Center (YSC)

Amundson and Wiltgen indicated interest in participating.

 6 DISCUSSION OF BOARD MEMBER MEETINGS

There were no meeting reports.

 7 DISCUSSION OF OTHER MEETINGS ATTENDED

There were no meeting reports.

 8 EMERGENCY ITEMS

There were no emergency items.

 9 ADJOURNMENT

MOTION: Wiltgen moved and Hudkins seconded to adjourn the meeting at 11:33
a.m.  Schorr, Hudkins, Avery, Wiltgen and Amundson voted yes.  Motion
carried 5-0.

_________________
Dan Nolte
Lancaster County Clerk

Page 7 BOC/STAFF/12/20/2016










































































